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PRELIMINARY

To appreciute the hardships and privations endured by the early
seltlers, it i necessury Lo contrust the conditions which existed at
Ltint time, with those af the present day.

Plantation No. 2, now Hermon, was settied as enrly as 1783
neur the close of the Revolutionary War.

AT THAT TIME

George Washington had about 16 years (o live. The population of
the United Stales was only a fringe on the Atlantie border.  There
were no railroads, steamboats, stearn engines, telegraph or tele-
phone lines and no luciler matches on euarth, It toek aboul two
weeks for o letter to reach Boston.  Muine was o part of Massachu-
setts.  Wheelersborough, now Humpden, was thriving settlement,

Hermon was an unbroken wilderness.  The early settlers lived
in camps and loyr houses. Men, women and ehildren wore home-
spun,  Furmiture and dishes were homemade. They subsisted on
game, lish, wild berries, sorrel, molusses and what could be ruised
in Lhe elearing, New Englund rum was 26 cts. 8 gallon.  Commun-
ieution with Wheelersborough, and with neighbors, was by water
anid by spotted trails.  Flint and steel were used to start fires.
Bears and wolves were troublerome. Nutvral mendows were mow-
ed and the fadder stacked to feed the stoek in winter. Religious
meetings and scliools were held in private lhpusges,

TODAY
Qur population is over 1200,  The tax vnlpation of the town s
$164,770.00  There nre 3 R R. Staljvas in pur town and 25 or more
trains daily. We have 8 Churches, 12 Sehouls, 7 Stores, 8 Frater-
nad Ovganizations, 60 miles of Stroets and Nighways, Modern Mach-
inery, Duily Mail, Improved Stock, Automebiles, Wireless Tele-
graphy, Telegraph, Telephoaes, and countless conveniences and
luxuries unknown to the world i hundred years 2go. -
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EARLY SETTLEMENT

It is not definitely known who the ftrst settler in Hermon wWaus,
or the exaet dute when he came. Reference tu the copy of the
petition to 'the General Court herein given, signed by 16 carly set-
tlers, who state Lherein that they had taken up the lund on or before
Junuary, L1784, fixes delinitely whe was here at that date, {Three
af the signers were also petitioners for the incorporation of Hamp-
denin 1777, viz: Daniel Nen!l, Joseph Pomroy and Gusiaveus Swan,)
1t is believed that all, vr nearly all of the 16 petitioners above refer-
ed 1o cume from Hampden and scttled on the south and west sides of
the Pond alterward known as ““Hewes Pond"’, laler “lHermon Pond??
und now cilled Lake Hermon.

At the Penobscot Co. Registry of Lleeds there is a map showing
the lots given to the petitioners. The lots are numbered, having the
sebtlers numes and the ligures 847, showing conelusively just
where these earliest settlers loeuted and who they were.

HISTORICAL MEMORANDA

The lollowing petition From flermon, isa &opy Irom the Misse
chusetts Records.

To the Honorable Sendife ald Huitse of Representulioes! in General
Cowrt assenhied.

The petition ol inhabitants aod settlers on Tuwnship No, 2, in
the second range, west of the Penobsent River, humbiy shewetls,
that your petitioners are row residing on land in the aforesaid Town.
ship: and was taken op and improved, on and before January in the
yeur of our Lord, 1784, and the interest of your petitioners wholly
depends un our possessions or Dpreveinents. Your petitioners
humbly pray that an hundred aeres of land may be granted o each
of your petitioners nanies; us is set forth in the fellowing plin: and
that a committee nmy be appointed, where applications may be
yrade for decds by peying the money tor each hundred acres ol land
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80 assigned to each of your petitioners, and your petitioners as iy
duty bound shall ever pray.
(Signed)

Daniel Neal, Ebineczer Garlin, Henjumin Page, Gustavens
Swan, Charles Blagden, Joseph Pumroy, Joseph Pomroy dr., James
Pumroy, John Blagdon, Jaramish Swan, Paoli llewes, Churles Blag-
don Jr., William Hewes, Julius Hewes, John Swian, John Smith,

Township No. 2, in the Secord Runge, Tth of November, 1795.

The foregoing petition wus raverably acted upon and ir, 1797 the
Jota were surveyed by Eliacheb Delapo by order of {he General
Court of Massachusetts.

This is the first plan of [Hermon on record, and iy recorded in
Haneock County.

No public records can be foumd showing what took place in Plun-
tation No. 2, from the time the survey of 100 ucres of land to each
petitioner was made in 1797, until Jan, 12, 1814, when the settiers
petitioned for incorporation of the town of Hermon, staling that 10
families were then living upon the Plantation.

The plan abuve referred to. showing the survey of lots Lo the
seltlers that were here in 1797, shows by the ligures *'34" op Lthem
who the settlers were, on, or previous to Junuary 1784, (23 lots we
50 marked), the other lots shown on the plan, not so marked, but
marked with the settlers name, show who cuine here hetween 184
and 1797, The names are James Boyd, John Pumroy and Wm, 1"um-
roy, making 26 families here in 1797.  These Higures show that from
1797 to 1814, a period of 17 years, only 14 families cume tw Plania-
tion No. 2.

e
First Map of Township No. 2, (Hermon)

This map is the first made of Township No. 2 (Hermon). The
survey was made by E. Deluno by order of the Geners! Courtl of
Massachusetts, culled the “Quicting Aet.’ This plate was made
from a copy made by V. A Bishop of the Historieal Committpn
from the Penobscot Co. records. It shows who the eurly set|lers
were and their locations.
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Iirst Map of Township No, 2, (Hermon)




EARLY SETTLEMENT 0F NO. HERMON

In 1804, Oct. 30th, a survey of lots of the early settlers at what
is now known as North Hermon, was made by L, Detano, of lots
grahted by Genl. Salem Town, according to the Resolve of March
Tth, 1804, to the following persons, yiz:- Jothan Muson, Ameg Mann,
James Mayhew, Jeptha Ciark und Benjamin Clark,

These lots are shown on a plan of Hermoen now in the Penobacot
County Registry of Deeds and is » copy of the vriginal plan recorded
in Hancoek Co, (Belfast).

This plan, above referred to, alsu shows lots in the south west
part of Hermon granted to Gabreil Johannett, Mr, Wheeler, John
Datten Jr. and Wm. Pautten 20, 1t seems certain from thig showing
thal the persons above named eame to Dlantation No. 2 between
1797 and 1804.

While but litile is definitely known of the doings of these carly
settlers from about 1783 to 1814, (exeept as herein recorded), men-
tion of a lew experiences of this rugged pioneer life may bhe of jj-
tetest,

Deuscon Julius Hewes., who was born in Hoston and came to
Hampden with bis tather 1)ihy Hewes, (who was chosen by the pe-
litioners for incorporution of H amixlen {Wheelersborough) to repre-
sent them before the General Court of M:nssachuselts), was ghe of
Lhe first settlers in Hermon Soun ufter his arrival he martjed
widow Hunnuh Grey, wha lived only a few years. Juliug nfterwurd
married 4 sister of his first wife, Betsey Ann Annis.  Before roads
were built many trips had 1o be made to Hampden, thejr market
place. Mrs. Betaey Ann Hewes made many ol these trips, often
varrying a baby,  She would put the grist and the baby on the
horses’ back with herself, and on reaching the Pond, would trung.
fer the load to 1 boat which she would row across the Pond, (ubouy
one mile}, the horse swimming beside the bout without gaddle or
bridle, On veaching the opposite shore the Jond wourld igrain be
plaeed wpon the horse and the Jouiney continued by spotted trail,
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When the grist was ground, the luncheon caten and the trading
done, she would return in the same way,  On one of these trips ghe
wus chased by a bear. Deacon Julitts Hewes was the father of 13
children, three by his first wife. lle was a prominent member of
the Universalist Church at Hermon Corner. e died July 11th, 15565
at the age of 87 years, 11 months and 15 days.

Mr. Chesley Webber whe lives at Hermon Center and who is 87
yeurs old says that his mother, Mrs. Isanc Webber, when living in
the old house now stunding on the (arm of Geo. tl. Klatte formerly
called the "“Tracey farm'’, and by some helieved to be the firat
frame house built in the town, going out to feed the swine, drove »
bear out of the hog pen with a pitch fork. On another ocecasion
when she went with her children where her husband was at work
“piling"’, the bears came out of the woods and drove them to the
house.

Il is known that John Miller who settleéd on *Milter Hill”*, cur-
ried corn on his back by spotted line to Wheelersborough (Hamp-
-den}. Mr. Miller was un oflicer in the Battle of lamjpden, He
was 4 lumberman and riverman on the Penobscuet for 26 years,

In those days women were skilled in spinning, weaving and knit-
ting; men in hunting snd irapping and in lumbering and driving,
Children were brought up to work, and when they became young
men and women they had shoes to wenr to meclings.  To economize
they went barefoot until near the place where the meeting was to
be held and then put on their shues and stockings.

The shoes were mostly ‘'cowhide’” but stylish young swains and
schoolmarms sometimes wore ealfskin. Old boot legs were made
into shoes for the children.

63
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From 1783 to 1814, a period of 31 years, Hermon was Plantation
No. 2, and grew in population from 23 families (as shown by the
plan referred to) to 40 families, as stated in the fullowing petition
for

INCGRPORATION OF THE TOWN

To the Honorable, the Senate and House of Representatives i, (lefis
eral Cowrt assembled:

We the humble petitioners feel to lubor under disadvantages in
aeting in the cupacity of an unineorporated Plantation and as we
have had a State and County tax assessed upon us for two years,
and there are forty families iiving on suid Plantation, we, us lhe
obedient subjects and obedient petitioners, would intreat your good-
ness to grant us the act of incorporation and the name of Herman
if your honors see fit and leat, we in duty bound would ever pray.

The above is the wish uand sense of a legal meeting of the i
habitants of Plantation No. 2, in the Second Range north of the
Waldo Patent.

Signed in Presents and in behalf of said Plantation, Junuary
12th, 1814,

Witniam Parren,  Plantation Clerk,
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The forepoing petition was favorably acted ujon, the Town of
Termon being incorporated June 13th, 1814, by virtue of the follow.
ing

ACT OF INCORPORATION

CHAP. XXX111, LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS.
An act to establish the Town of Hermon, in the Cownty of Hancoel:,

SEC. 1. Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Reyresenta-
tives in General Court assembled, and by nuthority of the sanle,
that the Township numbered two in the second range of townships
north of the Waldo Patenl, in the County of Hancock us contained
within the following boundaries, be, and hereby is established as 4
town by the name of Hermon, viz: cast by the town of RBangor:
south by the town of Hampden: west by the town of Carmel- and
north, partly by the town of Levant, and partly by the Township
numbered one in the third range of townships: and the inhabitanty
of said town of Hermon, are hereby vested with all the corporate
powers and priviledges, and shall also be subject (o the same dutjes
and requisitions, as other eorporute towns, aceording to the Consti.
tution and Jaws of this Commonwenlth.

SEC. 2. Be it further enacted, thut any Justice ol the Peace
for the County of Hancock, is hereby empowered upon application
therefor, to issue u warrant directed Lo a freehold inhabitant of the
said town of Hermon, requiring him to notify and warn the inhabi.
tants thereof Lo incet at such convenient lime and pluce a3 shall e
appointed in the said warrant, for the choice of such officers ,4
towns are by law required to choose and appoint ut their nnnpug!
town meetings,

Approved hy the Governor, Junie 18th, 1814,

Hermon wus the 207th town in the State and contains 23, 360
acres.
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CALL FOR TEBE FIRST TOWN M EETING

To Collings Howes inhabitunt uf the town of Herwmon i the County
of Hancoek:

GREETING:  You are hereby required in the name of the
Commoenweulth of Massachusetls ta summons and noti{y the free.
holders and other inhabitunts of suid town gualitied by law tg voitte
in town meeting, viz: Such as Lay to one single tax beside the pull
or polls a sum equal to two-thirds of a ringle polf tex. Ty assemlle
ut John Swan's dwelling louse in sgid ilermon on the 28vd duy or
March instant (1816) at ohe of the ¢'ozk in ATLEImeon 1o at on the
lollowing Articles, viz:

(Nine Articles follow, all for choice of town olficers)
Signed and dated March 9th 1815
Jusian Kinnrg,
Justice of the 'ence

At this (irst town meeting, held in persuance 1o (he foregcing
cill, the following ollicers were ¢livsen viz: Muoderator, John Patten;
Clerk, Collings Ilewes; Sclectnmen, Calkings Howes, Jehn Patten and
Julivs Hewes; Constable snd Collector of taxes, Elisha C. Grant at
43-2 per cent mivie; | Town Freasurer, C Nlings How s; MHigh-
way Surveyors, John Swan, Andrew Feriy, Elisha C. Grant, John
Wiley, Benjumin Clark; School Commitice, Dist. No. 1, Wiy I'atten,
Jubm Patten, Peter Gubtil: Dist. No. 2, lsune Webber, Stephen
Emerson, Andrew Pomrey: Dist. Na. 3, Joseph Pumroy, Jeramion
Swan, Elishia C. Grant: Dist. Ne. 4, Juhn Hopking; Fence Viewers,
John Swan, lsaae Webber, Nathaniel Gailand, Benjumin Clark; Hoxr
Reeves, Stephen Emerson, Benjunin Hopkins, Wiiligm Waterman,
John Miller; Tithingmen, John Swan, feseph Pumroy Jr ard Seth
Thotapsen.

“Vouted that horges shant run on Commons without fettepe. '

Voted to ““take up rum” ivom Aug. 10 to Dec. 20th.

Voted $100. for schools,  ¥800. for highways and  $10. for
town expensaes.

Voted (o have a spot of ground for a Pound at Mr. John Swun’s
birvok south of his dwedling house.
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SCHOOLS

Before the incorporation private schools were kept in dwelling
houses. Hepsiboth Dempsie Gitpalrick wus one of the early Leach-
ers. At the time of the incorpuration there were four school disi-
ricts in town. At the first town mecting (1818) $100. wus raised for
schools, At the 1816 town meeting it was voled to build three
school houses and $600. was ruised for the purpose.  This vote was
afterward reconsidered.

In 1814 School District No. 1, (llermon Pond)} raised $200. for
the purpose and voted to build a scheol house 20 x 22 ft., B ft. poats,
with square roof, shingled on one side und one end and clapboarded
on the other sides, the chimney to be of stone to the mantle piece
and finished with brick. Two yeurs luter Distriet No. 2, (Garland)
did the same thing. 1n 1833 there were seven schools and 828 schol-
ars in town.  (u 1913 there were 389 pupils of school age.  $3587.01
was expended for schoels.

The citizens of Hermon have nlwuays made liberal appropriations
for educatlional purpuses. At the present time there are 13 schooly
in town. The sehool houses and grounds are receiving more atten-
tion each year.

Among the suceessiul educators und superintendents during the
pust 40 years may be mentioned Rulus Rebinson, W. F. Harding,
Dr. H. J. Webber, . E. McLaughlin, Annic Mayhew, and the pres.
ent incumbent Mys. A. Linnis fnow, who, during her three terms in
ultice, hus kept in almoest daily toueh with the school work, promptly
attending to every detail and meeting with great success.

Severul School Leagues have been orgauized in town.

In the early days when schoo! houses were to be buill 4 commit-
tee was chosen who nolified each Lux payer in the district to deliver
s propertionate part of the materials vn or before « gtated time
und those who fujled to do g0 hud to pay their part ol the expense in
money.
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Residenge of Thursten Hunt, Hermon Corner

SOLDIERS

In the Revolutionary Waur, Jumes Mayhew scrved 7 years aml
afterward beeume a settier at North Hermon.
WAR OF 1812
John Miller was a Captain and Elihu Hewes, 1'. Henderson and
Eleazer Webber were privates in the war of 1812 and participated in
the battle of Hampden.
CIVIL WAR
The men of Hermon were loyal in the time of their Country'y
need. The town’s quota was promptly filled eueh time a call wag
made for volunteers. Citizens loaned money lo pay bounties ang
the town was soon [ree from the war debt.  Women, young ind old
prepured lint and bandages for the wounded und sent muny usefy]
articles to the Sanitary Gonunission dand to (he boys it the (ront.



Histdry of Herpon 13

The following list of Soldiers of the Civil War, compiled from
the Adjutant General’s Report of enlistments iy this State, may be
incomplete.

Benjumin Additon, Sanford Annis, 1 Po Amis, Gideon An-
drews Jr., Simon Annis Jr.,, C. F. Barrett, M. C. Burgess, H, I,
Barveti, George lrackett, Albert Bryant, John C, Bowen, 0. J.
Dorman, Martin V. Bryant, 8. 8. Buszell, Elwin Barrett, Thomas
3. Bryant, J. H. Booker, J. T Bradiey, . H. Crocker, E. T. Clif-
ford, William Clark, Geo. Clurk, J, F. Clark, J. F. Clifterd, C. 11,
Clark, G. W. Cliflord, T.7T. Clark, S. W. Duawson, K. K. Drew,
Sylvester Drew, Danict Emnerson, Duvid Emerson, M. T. Emerson,
Ithamar Emerson, C. W. Fletcher., A. W, Grant, C, T Green,
Michuel Gallugrher, Howard Grant, M. M, Grunt, Charles 8, Grant,
Samwel Grant, C. |. Hummond, F. J. Hammoend, Franklin -
mond, J. E. ilolt, Clark Hummond Ir., Cyrus E. Hewes, John Hall,
H. A. Higgins, John Haskell, W. D. Jenness, Frank H. Jewell, P.
P. Kimball, Stillman Kelley, Hemry Kelley, A.J. Kimball, H. p,
Kimball, Fdiward Kelley, B. L. Kimball. A. R. Lord, Gep. H.
Light, Henry W. Light, Andrew J, Light, H. W. Leathers, Chas.
A. Mansell, Lyman Moses, C. A, Mannell, C. Il Maddocks, Thom.
as Miller, Emory Mornall, M. T. Miller, E. R. Maddocks, Robert
I. Nowell, Francis Overloek, Lemuel Overlock, W. I, Overlock,
Neweil Pomroy, L. K. Patten, Samuel Pomroy, James Patten Ir.,
C. H. Patten, €. H. Pickard, lenry . Parks, Reulen Preseott,
I, 8. Pieree, J. F. Reed, |. ], Reeves, Lucius Runking, G F Sune
born, John Sawyer, Samuel Sidelinger, A, J. Smith, Geo. H. Swith,
Samuel Snow, Robert Swan, A M, Smith, I C. Sawyer, C. F.
Stuples, G. C. Spearing, Irank Smith, . A Tash, C. (. Tracey,
A. J. Taylor, L. H Tibbetts, Moses Wymun, Thomus Wyman, .
Ho Worster, Benjumin Webber, R D, Worster, Chas, A Woodbury,



aif HSulYy Of HerMgs

A. R. Witham, R. M. Whittier, James Wyman, §. 1, Watson,
G. A. York, 8. N. York, Chas. B. Dore, Henry Derry, Hiram
Emerson, Peter K. Patten, Alexander C. Hewes, Eleazer Webber
Jr., Geo. F. Annis, John W. Garland, Wm. F. Johnson, George I,
Luce, Wm. H. Pettee, Danforth Snow, George E. Tibbetts, Amasa
Overlock, Obediah Banks, Alvin Overlock, Emery Leuthers, Perry
O. Bryant, Benjamin York, Lafayeite Brown, D. W. Barrett, J.
R. Bowen, A. K. Lord, C. . Tuesley, J. W. Tuesley, F. . Thomp-
son, Wilson Hammond.

Of this number, if facts were known, many thrilling experiences
incident to a soldiers’ life might Le cited. Capt. Benjamin York
died in Libby Prison. Chas. B. Dere spent considerable time as a
prisoner at Libby Prison.  When finally paroled he brought home &
farewell message to relntives of Capt. York.

Among the survivors at the present time is Robert . Nowell
who served in Company E, 11th Maine Infantry. One of his experi-
ences was serving on the detail that did the work with the " Swam p
Angel.”” 10 men were detuiled and Mr. Nowell was among them.
When the big gun burst an Oldtewn man was thrown intq the Swamp
at such a distance it took a beat to rescue him, but he survived.

Anether gurviver, Martin V. Bryant who served in Company D,
11th Regiment, was taken prisoner and confinedin Andersonville pri-
son for a period of six months.  He tells that the only shelter which
he and two other fellow prisoners had from the storms and burning
sun during that terrible experience, wus a blanket stretched on four
atakes driven into the sand. He secured the blunket by trading un
overcoat with a rebel soldier.  After one of the three died the other
two had more room, he says. :

e
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G. A R.

Danier Ciiarran Post ,No. 72, (. A, K., having a membership
of over 40 residing in Hermon and Levant, lourished for 1y or 1b
years. Meetings were held first in Levant but linally the Post mov-
ed to Hermon and met in the Grange Hali Soon after the dedica-
tion of the Soldier’s Monument at the Corner, in which the Poat
memburs participated, the churter was surrendered.

W. R. C.

DANIEL CliapLIN W. R. C., No. 39, auxillary to G, A. R. Post
No. 72, had ahout 40 members and did a noble work for many yeais
amony the sick and destitute, disbanding in 1904, The members
were the promoters of the

SOLDIER'S MONUMENT

rected at the Corner in 1901 and costing $905. 8,

Standing in the Village Sguare, enclosed by an ornamental stecl
Tence, and surrounded by fragrant flowers growing in lasty beds wel]
kept by loving hands, this beautiful Monument, a trilute to the ljy.
ing and dead alike, 'will ever perpetuate the memory of thuse who in

the lower of their youth responded 1o thelr Country’s eudl.
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Soldier's Monument, tlevmon Corner
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The Monumerit bears this inseription.

ERECTED A. D. 1901

IN HONOR OF

THE DEFENDERS OF OUR COUNTRY
1861 - 1865

BY THE
CITIZENS OF HERMON

AND MEMBERS OF

DANIEL CHAPLIN W. R. C. NO. 39

THE PROMOTERS
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ON DECORATION DAYS
in the cemetery at Snew Corner the Wyman and B3

arrett fumily
burial lots are marked with three flugs in ench fof

, In memory of
soldier boys who never vame back, a sad reminder of thase jurk
days,

Py

*8new Corper,” Hermon
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INDUSTRIAL

In the early days Samuel Ames ran 2 saw mill on the Wheeler
Stream at Snow Corner and there was & steam saw mill at the Cen-
ter.

About 1820 C. H. W. Tuesley had a brick yard at the Corner and
did quite a buginess.

A Cheese Factory, producing three tons of cheese daily, flour-
ished for 2 time in the T’s.

A Paper Box Factory was located, for u time, at the Corner.

Before the Railroads were built Hermon Corner had four stores
and a Carriage Shop.

During the §0’s - 89's quite an extensive Cooperage business was
carried on, largely by N. . & J. G. Eaton.

These industries are a thing of the past although there is yome-
thing done in Cooperage yet.

At the present time Hermon has a Creamety at the Pond doing
A big business.

Since the Jocation of Hermon Junction in the town, the Railroad
business, in various forms has given employnient to a large number
of men. The Eastman Heater Plant is located at the Junction, also
extensive Coal Sheds.

C. W. Uetz is proprietor of the Picnic Grounds at Hermon Pond,
a favorite resort for fishing, boating and picnickers in large parties,
Chas. Hopkins and Emery Luce each have resorts at the Pond.

Agriculture is the principal sccupation in the town.  The soil is
fertile and well adapted for raising crops of hay, potatoes, fruit,
grain, and strawberries. The poultry business receives considerable
attention. Shipping facilities are good there being three Railway
Stations intown. Bangor, five miles distant, i3 a good market for
{farm products.

Hermon originally was well supplied with pine, spruce, juniper
and hard wood tumber most of whieh was driven to market in the
streams and disposed ol at jrices thut today would seemr trifling.
Pine, spruce and hemlock Jogs in the wuter were worth §2. per thou.
sand und hemboek bark $2. per eord.
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FPROFESSIONAL

The firgt resident Doctor was Chag. H. Kates, about tx70, Dr,
8. W. Otis came next, afterward removing to Carmel, [y, I
Whittaker has been practicing here for ubout lwenty five yeurs.
Dr. H. J. Webber praeticed here a few yeurs. Dr. L J. Wright
has practiced in town for about nine yeurs.

FRATERNAL ORGANIZATIONS

LYNDE LoDGE No. 174, F. & A. M. owns and oceupies the upper
story in the Tuwn Hall and the basement is used us g dining hall,
This lodge wus instituted soon atter the cluse of the Civil Wap.

JONATIHAN HUNT Charrer, No, 9, O. F. 8. also use the Masonic
Hall. Both of these orduers ure in « thriving eondition.  The Chap-
ter sewing cirele membiers wre good workers and do much charitable
work, It was orgunized 17 years ago.

UNiow GraNGE, No. 26, owns and occupies the old Universalist
Church. Ameng the prominent early workers were the Halls,
Muores, and the Cushimans. Owning this fime propertly, and having
a large und active membership, the future suceess of this Grunge
seeny assured, especially as great interest is being shown through-
out the State in the work of the Grange, the membership exceeding
60, 000.

Triumrn Lopce, No. 119, 1. 0. Q. F., KASTERN STAx REBEKAH
Lobce, No. 36, 1. 0. 0. F. and HriMon ENCAMI'MENT, No. 55, 1.
0. 0. F. have their home in the Odd Fellow's Hall.  This fine huild-
ing, erected in 1907 (o replace the one burned in 1966, is thoraugly
built on & eoncrete foundution and cost $hone. The basement is ysed
for a kitehen nnd banquet, hall, the fivsy foor is used for entertain-
ments and dancing, and the sceond story eontains the ledge voom,
ante and preparation roems.  The huilding has ard wood finigh ang
luors and steel ceiling, All three of these lodges are aclive and
brosperous.
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Odd IPellow’s 1all, Herrion

The meetings urnd work of the six organizalions abuve named
furnish abundant opportunity for the social and fraternal inter-
tul'rse necossary to promote united efort for the betterinent of the
community.

Perfect harmeny exists between them and many {riendly comt.
esies are exchanged. A notalile instance of this accured at the time
the Odd Fellow s Hall was hy rned, when the Masonic Lodge gener-
vusly gave the use of their hall, rent free, for about a year to the I,
0. 0. F. Lodges.

Two lurge stubles in the rear of town lui are equally coltvenient
for use of Grange, Masonic and Odd Fellow members, and the three
dining halls, which combined seals over d00 people, van be and are
all used on special pecasions,
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CHURCH ORGANIZATIONS

ADVENT CHAPEL

The Advent Chapel at North Hermon was built in 1845, For
many years the interest was good and the meetings largely attend-
ed.  Amung the most active early workers were George and John
Bruckett, Wm. Clurk, Chas. E. Phillips, Cyrus Tibbetts and Hussey
Dore.  After a time the interest abated and the building not being
much used became sudly out of repair,  About ten Years ago Lhe
pevple of that seclion feit the need uf a place of worship and a soei-
ely was formed, largely Advents, who have been untiring in their
zeul,

They have quite thoroughly repaired the building and meetings
are held regularly. A steel ceiling hay been put into the Chapel thiy
year. Rev, Juseph A, Snow is conducting the meetings at the
present time.

UNIVERSALIST

The Universalist Church at Hermon Corner was built in l¥48 by
Rev. Wm. Patten who wus its [irst pastor. This society was a lurge
and very active one for many years. Rev. Amory Battles, Rev, E,
K. Peck, Rev. E. Case, Rev. Luke Rand, Rev. J. H. Sawyer und
Rev. Geo. W. Quimby were pastors during the period of its greatest
activity,

For lack of support the chureh got out of repair and in 1900 the
society presented it {practically) to Union Grange No. 26, The
Steeple wus removed, the building repaired und additions mude,
making a nice home for this thriving Grange.

FREEWILL BADPTIST
This society was organized Mar, 13, 186Y. ieo. DL Higging, J.
G. Eaton, James Taylor, €. H. W. Tuesley, Mury Swan, Zeruinh
Taylor, Hepsiboth D. Higging and Florence Goss were charter
members, They chose J. G. Eaten, Clerk and Geo. D Higains,
Deacon and voted to juin the Exeler Quurterly Meeting.
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Serviees were first held in the Town Hall and the village school
house. C. D. Garland was the tirst pastor, Preaching Services were
held every fourth Sunday, N, ¥, Weymouth was chosen pastor in
July following und served about one yeur.

A Sunday Schoeol of 30 to 40 members was organized in 1871,

Other preachers who hiwve olficiatel here, most of whom have
heen settled pastors were: Hev. 1. C. Bradeen, Rev. A. W, Reed,
Dei. Geo. Higging, Rev. 5. . Whitcomnb.  Students from the
Bungor Theological Schoul supplied the pulpit for a time:- Mr. Rob-
bins, Rev. John Bunks, Mev. ). Bean.  Rev. Otls P, Frost came
abcut 1890 und servesl six years when he resigned.  He soon returned
and remained until 1904 Mr. While & Seminary student olheiated
lor a time, sueeeeding Mvy., [Frost. Arthur Bluck of Bangor servel
ds pastor sonie little time during which the society was very aclive.

This church was ereeted in 1870, The bell was donated by Mr.
Lorenzo Peabudy.  The organ was purchused in 1803, In 1910 (he
church was thoroughly repaired snd painted inside snd outside,
steel eeiling put in und a new Toundation mude.  Recent jmators
have been Arthur Black, Rev. Frederick Banks and Mr, Rankin a
Seminary swudent.  The soeiety has 32 members al the present time
and is without u settied pastor,

v

CHRISTIAN CHURCH

This church was orgunized by 8 8. Nason in the Distivet #hoo
house on the Read Hiil, Oct. 1511 1860,

Rev. E. K. Drew led a reformation in llermon about 1871 . 2
wkieh created a great interest in this socivty.

Gen. F. Luce, one of the memburs, buegueathed the sum of §390,
to build a chureh and in 1892 it way built on a lot given by Mr,
Luee's widow. 1t was dediented Oct. 4 ol that year, Rev. Joshua
House of Corinna ofliciating.
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This Chureh is open to all Evungelieal denominations,
Rev. 8. 8. Nuson served us puster until i#iq and was followed
by Rev, Mr. Gowin until 1869, (hen lder Otis 1569 to 1872, Regul

ur
monthly conlerences were held. Other pastors have been, Revs.
Jacob Durgin, Ephrism Drew, Timothy Humphrey, und Charles k.
Hewes, one of the most zeulous workers. Rev. Jus. Grindall or

Bangor served from March 1897 for one year. Rev. 5. H. MeKeene,
1898 - 1900, Rev. Stacey Burriil and Rev. Rufus Bartlett and many
othera have labored here.

This society wus duly incorporated M uy 9, 1891 The organ was
bought in 1898, At the bresent time Mr. & Mrs. Eben Clement are
very active members.  This chureh has been repaired this year,

Rev. Osear Overlock lus conducted undenuminutionnl services
for the past few yeurs. M. Overloek is un Advent preacher,

£y

Baptist Church, Hermoen
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MERCHANTS 1770918

Wurren & Burnetl, Gen. Hersey, William and Daniel Hewes &
Julius Hewes were among the early truders.  Aflerward, Beni
Swett and the firmof N. I & J. G. Baton who kept a ('}e:u-r;‘]l.[
Store at the Corner, then Johu Kimball, John H. Kimball, Gem‘gc‘
W. Muore, Geo. F. Moure, Thurston Hunt, J. J. Royal. Franklin
Perry, W. 8. Pike on the Puller Road in Burnett Dist, Mr, Libiby at
No. Hermon. Kimball & Bishop succeeded by F. AL Bishop at
Snow Corner. A. J. Kenniston, Vassar Valiades and My, Crowley
at Hermon Junetion.  The above list comprises the traders in town
past and present, although incomplete. -

4

POPULATION OF HERMON

1800 - 82 it - 1374
1810 - 179 1860 - 1432
1820 - 277 1870 - 1480
1830 ~ 533 1840 - 1282
1840 - 1042 1900 - 1183
TAX VALUATION
1812 - $Y,220, 02 1881 - $394, 994, 00
1820 - $22, 056. 04 194 - $361, 112,00
1860 - $197, 120.00 1914 - $464, 77000

In 1880 the State Valuation Commission wdded abuut $100,000 to
Hermon's valuation.  The Valuation Commission ol 1890 mide a re-
duction of about $56,000.

NUMBER 0F POLLS
1812 - 33 1803 - 344
1844 - 146 1914 - Jad
NOTE - The increase in valuation from 1900 1o F14 o $103,627
has been largely due to the establishment of Northern Maine Junet-
ion in the town during that time.
The pupulition has inereased sinee 1906 from the sume cause,
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PROMINENT SONS OF HERMON

Among the prominent song of Hermon resident in other States
may be mentioned:

Ciias. OVERLOCK; now serving u§ United Stutes Murshal, Ex-
Mayor, Bisbee, Ariz. -
LEMUEL OVerLOCK, Banker and Broker, Bishee, Ariz,

Wi OvERLOCK, Banker, Merchant, Hop Raiser, Ex- Mayor,
Kent, Washington.

FrANK SPraTT, Prineipal High School, Providence, R. I,
Fren L. BRYANT, Capitulist, Manulacturer, Chicago, I1l
WaLpo T. McLauGiiLiN, Custom [House Broker, Boston, Mauas.
Geo. W. HaLl Esq., Government Clerk, Waslhington, D. C.
HARRY LEaTHEKS, Draughtsman, Boston, Mass.

Dr. H. H. KimyaALL, St. Vaul, Minn.

JASON M. PaTTEN ESq., Retived Farmer, Minneapoetis, Minn.
Frank York Esq., St Louis, Mo.

CHAaB. AmMES, Retired Manulacturer, California.

BENJ. W. GuuTiL, Inventor, Saginaw, Mich.

LeEoN M. Hewes Esq., Manufacturer, Boston, Mass,

MADISON M. MILLER, Furniture Dealer and Mover,
Dorchester, Muass.

LORIN CLARK Esq., Mining Expert, Atlantic City, N. 1.
ALTON CLark, Somerville, Mass.

Dr. W. W, Cusuman, Claremont, N, H.

Dr. ELmEnr E. Siaw, Wally Waila, Wash.
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Residence of Mrs. L. D. Snow, Snow Corner, Hermon

1815
1816
1817
1818
1819
1820
1821
1822
1823
1824
1826
1526
1827
1828
1829
1830
1831
1832

EARLY TOWN OFFICIALS
SELECTMEN

Collings Howes, John 'atten, Julius Hewes
Collings Howes, Wni. Patten, John Swan

Wm. Patten, Collings Howes, John Swan

Win. Patten, Collings Howes, John Bwan

Wm. Patten, Francis Jennes, Julius Hewes
Wm. Putten, Julius Hewes, Francis Jennes
Wm. Patten, Joei Read, Francis Jennes

Wmn. Patten, Joel Rewd, Francis Jennes

Joel Read, Francis Jenness, Johnathan Hutehins
Joel Read, Julius Hewes, Francis Jennes

Wm. Patten, Julius Hewes, Joseph Maddocks
Wm. Patten, Jos. Maddocks, Francis Jenness
Win, Patten, Joel Read, Francis Jennes

Wt Patten, Francis Jenness, Joel Read
Joseph Maddocks, John Maddocks, Ebine Taylor
Wm. Patten, Jos, Maddocks, John Muddocks
Wm. Patten, Joseph Maddocks, John Maddocks
Wm. Patten, James Taylor, Sam'l, Verril
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Flestory ap tigrmon

1833 Wm. Patten, San’l Verril, Jumes Taylor

1834 Wm. Patten, Sam’'l Verril, Saumuel Ames

1835 Joseph Maddocks, Elihu Hewes, David L. Jennig
1836 Elithu Hewes, Sumuel Ames, Sam'l Verril

1837 Samuel Verril, Sumnuel Aines, Ebinezer G Patien
1838 .John Miiler, lsaae Emursen, Joel Read

1839 Win. Patlen, Samuel Ames, Jumes Patten Esy.
1840 James Patten dr., Alanson Grant, Lionel D, Phillipy
1841 James PattenJr., Wm. F. Full, Joseph Maddoeks
1442 Jumes Patten Jr., Wm. F. TFull, Joseph Maddocks
1313 Joseph Maddocks, Sumucl Ames, John Kimball
1844 John Kimball, Alanson Grant, John Maddocks
1845 John Kimbull, Jumes Patten Jr, John Maddocks
1846  John Kimball, Wm. Hewes, John Maddocks

1847 Jehn Kimball, Oliver Patten, John Maddoeks

1850 Jumes Patten Jr., Chas. D. Bryant, Geo, W. Patten
1851 John 1. Hinckley, lliram Harding, John Patten
1862 Isaac G. Decvow, Hiram Harding, John Paiten
1853 John Kimball, Stephen 8. Hewes, Alanson Grant
1854 1, G. Deerow, J. 11 Johnson, ltarvey Harding Jr,
1856 John Kimbull, Stephen 8. Hewes, Alunson Grant
1856 - 57 J. Kimball, Silus Miller, Enoch Leathers

1858 Jumes I'atten Jr., Lewis Kimball, Rufus Robinsoen
1869 Jumes Patten, Lewis Kimball, Jno. M. Bickford
1860 J. M. Bickford, Hiram Hurding, lHenry Barrett
1861 John Kimball, H. Barrett, Enuch Leathers

1862 - 62 1. Kimball, J. H. Hinckley, Enoch Leathers,
1864 J. 11. Hinekley, Alanson Grant, N. D. Eaton

18656 John Kimbuall, N, ). Eaton, Henry Barrett

1866 John Kimbal, N. D, Euton, Wm. H. Leathers
1867 John Kimball, N. D. Edaton, James Patten

1868 John Kimball, Jumes Patten, Levi Allen

186% - 70 Juhn Kimball, N. D. Eaton, Albert Huall

1871 N. D. Baton, Albert llall, R. Robinson Jr.

1872 John Kimball, 1. M. Hall, John W, Leathers
1874 ). 1. Hinckley, D. M. [ail, larvey Harding
1871 John Kimball, J. W. Leathers, Seth K. Amnes
1575 John Kimball, 8. K. Ames, G. W. Huopking
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CHRONOLOGY

PLANTATION - TOWNSHII NO. 2
1784 Early settlers eume onor previous to Jan. 1, 1784,
1793 Polly Clark, born.
1794 Beisey Swan, duughter of John Swan, born.
1196 Richard Casey, born.
Early settiers petitioned the General Court of Massachusetty
for 100 neres of Jund eneh.
1797 Synthas Mayhew, born.
Survey of land made by order of Mass. General Court giving 100
aeres of land to cach petitioner in persuance of a resolve enlled
the “Quieting Aet.”
1813 Petition for incorpotilion of ithe town of Hermon?
TOWN OF HERMON
1814 Date of Incorporation, June 13th, 1814,
LBID First Town Meeting held at John Swan's house.
1816 Voted to build 3 school houses, 1 - 2 - 2.
Voted to ruise $600. to build 3 sehool houses.
This vote wus alterward rescinded.
Voted '“Po keep all thisels down on every man’s tand on penal-
ty of $20. tine, The selectmen Lo see that the thisels were mMow-
ed to clear the fine.”’
1817 Voted to ““Keep the road open from lsuac Webber's 8. W. Cor-
ner iot to Collings Howes’ South line without gates or burs. *’
1818 Voted to have “Priviledge to kill patridges and robbins’*
25 vates cast for Governor.
Raised $200. for schools.
Pauper sokl at vendue for 92 cts. per weel, bourd and clothing,
1819 Town meeting held in No. 1 District School House.
Voled on separation of Maine from Massuchusetts, passed.
Wm. Putten choren delegate to convention called to {rume
i Stule Constitution.
Voted to aceept Constitution,
Suluries for own viticers for 1814, -
Constable, $L04; Clerk, $1.00; Treasurer, $2.00 per year
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1820

1822

1825

[

1830
1832

1833

1834

Histiry of Hevnion

Voted "to allow Peter Gubtil five dollars for 1-2 acre of land
for a "herrying"’ plaee and five dollars for the privilege of pet-
ting to it.”’

“Elisha C. Grant bid off the feneing of it at ninteen und one-
hult dollars whieh is to be done with goud posts and rails he-
tween this and next winter. Ile is niso to clear up the hushes
and make a “desent’’ gute and “hawl’ in a Joad of suituble
graveslones.””

Built School house in No. 3, (ut No. lermon) then ealled Muns.
borough, a district 2 miles squire in the N. E. Corner of the
town, named for Amos Mann one of the early settlers in that
part of the town.

School houge in No. 4, built,

School house in No. 3, hurne.

Mareh 6lh, Kza Patten, Chesley Putten, Duniel "I Emerson,
Isaae Webber and Eleazer Webber petitioned for a distriet
meeting tu build a school house in No., 2

Schoul house in No. 2, buiil.

Y School Distriets in towi.

Paid $10. for 1-2 uere of ground at Ne. Hermon for a burying
groung.

itoud, Hermon to Glenhurn luid out.

School Distriet No. 4, established.

Voted te allow gates to road through Maddoek’s farm.

116 voters registered in town,

F100. tor schouls, $2500. tor rouds.

He legal voters in town.

7 schoold und 328 seholurs in tuwi.

Billings Romd ueeepted.

Voted to build Town House,

Voted te build Avenue Roud.

Burying growmd on “*Busten Read'" neeepted.

Seleettnen niet at John Hinkley’s fnn te grant license to retail
liguor duetders,
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1835 Selecimen appointed a committee to petition Capt. Lowder for
land on which to buill & Town House.
Voted to build bridge across Wheeler stream. Reconsidered at
later meeting,
May 25, voted to build & Town House.

1836 Voted to build */ Bog Rel. " and use $300. ruised to build Town
house,

1837 Mar. 31, Disposition of State Surplus Funds tatked up.
June 15, Distribution of State Surplus Funds.
Samuel Ames, James Taylor and Patrick Crogan, chosen a vom-
mittee to recieve the State Surplug Funds and distribute it
among the inhabitants.

1845 300,000 ft. Hemlock and Pine logs in water at ““Cross Bridge?’
sold for $2, per m. for logs, and $2. per eord for hark.
Voted to build School house in No. 1.

1847 Town House buill,

1848 Universalist Church built by Rev. Wm. Patten, its first pastor,
Benj. Bussey, former owner of the town of Hermon, died in
Roxbury, Mass.

1867 Ruised $3,000. by taxation to reduce the war delit.

1870 Baptist Chureh built,

Vuted to pay the State and County tax out of State bonds in
the town treasury,

Town voted to erect a suituble monument to our deceased Sold-
fers. IReconsidered at later meeting.

1874 Town Houge enlarged and made into two story .building, the
Masonic Lodge sharing in the expense and occunying the ST
story since that time.

1890 Odd Fellow’s Hall built on part af the town lot.

1900 Universalist Church sold to Union Grange for one dollar.

1006 Odd Fellow's Hail burned, This was a two story building,
30 1-3 x 05 It

1907 New Odd Fellow's Hall built on same site, size 82 x 65 ft. with
23 ft. posts.
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Residence of Ifrank A. Bishop, Snow Corner, Hermon

REMARKS

We cunnot close this brief history covering o period ot 131 years,
without expressing our adimiration for the undaunted spirit of the
strong men and women, who, leaving behind them the comforts uf
civilization, braved the dangers and hanlships of pioneer life to muke
for themselves homes in the unbroken wilderness, and whose sturdy
deseendants arve tuduy seattered throughout this town and the nution.
Of the earliest settlers many are buried in the cemetery at Hermuan
Pond. Peace to their ashes!

The changes which have tuken place in Hermon in One Hundved
Years isin a slight degree typical of the wonderful development of
these United States during that period. A transformation so seem-
ingly magical that it is the wonder of the world, and is beyond the
power of pen to describe. ]

The committee are indebted to the Town Register, published in
1904, for infarmation on chureh matters and slutistics.
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CENTENNIAL COMMITTEES

General Committee R. H. PATTEN, Chairman

Entertainment, Invitation and Reception
J. MeLLeN TavLor, Chaivman

Historival Committee 1%, A. Bisnop, Chairmun
Music Committee ALBERT WING, Chairman
Parade Committee L. 8. McgLaAuGHLIN, Chairman
Printing and Publicity Committee R. W. Snow, Chairman
Decorative Committee A. LiNnis Snow, Chairman
Buanquet Committee Mus. Dasy Hunt,

Mrus. Lizzie WiNG, Mis. EFrie Bisuop, Chairmen
Athletie Committee T, 'T. DunN, Chairman
Souvenir Committes Annie M. SmiTi, Chairman
Program Committec EunesT Bisnor, Chairman
Antique Committee MRS, OLivi TisseTTs, Chairman
Improvement Committee F. A. Bignor, Chairman
Refreshment Cotnmittec MaprLie Mowarr, Chairman

This “‘History of Hermon’
was compiled by the Historical Conunittee.
Frank A. Bishop, Chairman,
Roscoe W. Snow, Annie Mayhew.

Y



8.00
9.400
240
11.05
11.16
11.25
11.45
12.00

. 100
1.30

8.1b

330

Witirial  flrogram

HERMON, MAINE. WEDNESDAY, AUt. 14th, 1914

Ringing or Bells

Band Concert

Civie and Industrial Parade

Drilt of Emergeney Squad

100 Yard Dash, Bitlings Roud opposite Town Lot

Potato Race, Town Lot

Tug of War, Town Lot

M. 25¢ Dinners Served in Town Hail. I, 0. Q. 7. [lall and
Grange Hall,

1. M.

Band Concert

Literary Fxercises
Meeting culled to order by J. Mellen Taylor, Chairmun
ol Entertainment, Invitation and Reception Conmittee.
Prayer,
Address of Weleomes,

Russell H, Patten, Chairmian General Commitiee.

Singing of Stur Spangled Bunner by Scheol Children.
Address,  Chas. B Jaekson of Portland, Maine.
Selection, Bund.
Letters from Absent Unes.
Singing of Aineriea Ly Assoinbly.

At F. O. Prescott Mace. Barrel Hace

Base Bull Gumne, followed by 3 Legyed Race, Droud Jump,

High Jump, and Buse Ball Throwing Contest.

} -~
Exhibition of Antiques u('_‘rh]'{guuﬂnf during the day.




